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EMERGENCY ORDER OF REVOCATION
Under 49 U.S.C. §46105(c), the Acting Administrator has determined that an emergency exists related to safety in air commerce and that immediate action to revoke AMI Jet Charter, Inc.’s Air Carrier Certificate is required.  The reasons for this determination are set forth in the paragraph below entitled “Determination of Emergency.”

Based on an investigation and all evidence presently before the Acting Administrator, the Acting Administrator finds that:

[ALLEGATIONS - BEGIN HERE]

Section I - Background 

1.
From in or about 1998, AMI Jet Charter, Inc. (hereinafter “AMI”) was the holder of Air Carrier Certificate Number IJ0A4091 issued under Part 119 and authorizing operations under Part 135 of the Federal Aviation Regulations (14 C.F. R. Parts 119 and 135). 

2.
At all times relevant herein, TAG Aviation USA (hereinafter “TAG”) was owned by and/or controlled by a foreign citizen and, therefore, was ineligible to hold an air carrier certificate. 
3.       On about September 9, 2005, the Department of Transportation (DOT), issued a

          Consent Order in which it stated that: 

“2. We find that, as described above, AMI Jet Charter, Inc. engaged in interstate and foreign air transportation while it was under the actual control of foreign interests and, therefore, not a citizen of the United States as defined in 49 U.S.C.§ 40102(a)(15).

3.  We find that by engaging in the conduct described in ordering paragraph 2, above, AMI Jet Charter, Inc., violated 49 U.S.C. § 41101 and 14 CFR Part 298;”

4.
The aforementioned DOT Consent Order also ordered: 

“4. …AMI Jet Charter, Inc., and all other entities owned and controlled by or under common ownership and control with AMI Jet Charter, Inc., and their successors and assignees to cease and desist from further similar violations of 49 U.S. C. § 41101 and 14 CFR Part 298.”

5.       Notwithstanding the above, AMI and TAG knowingly, intentionally, and willfully engaged in a scheme and/or deceptive practice to make it appear to federal            regulatory entities, including the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), as if AMI remained in control, including operational control, when in fact TAG            exercised  control of passenger-carrying flights ostensibly operated under the         authority of AMI’s air carrier certificate.  

Section II – TAG Exercised Business And Financial Control Over AMI  

6.         AMI and TAG commenced the aforementioned scheme and/or deceptive practice on or about 1998.  Specifically, in 1998 TAG, in furtherance of its scheme and/or deceptive practice to operate passenger-carrying flights for compensation or hire when it knew that it was not eligible to hold an air carrier certificate issued under Part 119, purchased Aviation Methods, Inc., the predecessor company of AMI, and the holder of an air carrier certificate issued under Part 119. 

7.         TAG and AMI’s records demonstrate that:

a.
TAG officers have or have had signature authority on AMI’s operating and payroll accounts.

b.
TAG officers are or have been responsible for the expenditures related to AMI’s Part 135 operations.

c.
TAG holds or held the fleet insurance policy for the aircraft on AMI’s Operations Specifications.

d.
TAG is or was the first named insured under the fleet insurance policy.

e.
The aforementioned fleet insurance requires or required that TAG or its designee approve all pilots in AMI’s Part 135 flights.

f.
TAG and AMI occupy business suites in the same building, 111 Anza Blvd., Burlingame, California.

g.
TAG is the guarantor of the lease for the business suite occupied by AMI at 111 Anza Blvd., Burlingame, California.

h.
TAG primarily performs or performed duties associated with AMI Part 135 operations.

i.
TAG and AMI share or shared employees and the employees are or were interchangeable to the point where TAG paid the salaries of the majority of AMI employees.
j.
TAG provides or provided all of AMI’s employees with employment benefits including 401k Profit Sharing Plan, among others. 

k.
Until recently, AMI only carried anywhere from 22 to 37 employees on its payroll records while TAG carried over 700 employees on its payroll records.

8.        TAG and AMI records demonstrate that, individuals that serve or have served as   executive officers of TAG also serve or have served as executive officers of          AMI.

9.
 Individuals that serve or have served as executive officers of TAG made decisions and took actions on behalf of AMI.

10.     In addition, the individual serving as a financial director of TAG simultaneously 

         also served in the capacity of financial director of AMI, supervising day-to-day 

         financial activities, and signed checks for both AMI and TAG.

 11.
In furtherance of the above-described scheme and/or deceptive practice AMI and/or TAG entered into written agreements with the entities listed immediately below regarding the following aircraft for the use of these aircraft in Part 135 operations:

(1) Lifetouch, Inc. – Aircraft Identification Number N107LT 


(2) Bemis Company, Inc.-  Aircraft Identification Number N120YB


(3) Curwood, Inc. – Aircraft Identification Number N130YB

(4) Pecos Aircraft Sales & Leasing, LLC. – Aircraft Identification Number  N150SB

(5) TTG Enterprises, LLC. – Aircraft Identification Number N717M and/or 717MT

(6) Wilmington Trust Co. Trustee – Aircraft Identification Number N888ZZ 

(7) SCP Aviation LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N192NC


(8) TNCD, LLC. – Aircraft Identification Number N314TC 

(9) Jet Flight West Corp. - Aircraft Identification Number N 520JF 

(10) Basic American Property Management, LLC. – Aircraft Identification Number N550H and/or N55BA

(11) Wilmington Trust Co. Trustee – Aircraft Identification Number N288Z

(12) York Aviation GP., Inc. Aircraft Identification Number N 53GX

(13) Donald G. Fisher Trustee – Aircraft Identification Number N823DF 

(14) Egret Management, LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N97DQ

(15) Jay Aviation LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N999YY

(16) KAMV LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N508MV

(17) Fair Oaks Transportation & Finance LLC- Aircraft Identification Number N412HS

(18) Focal Point Leasing LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N552SM


(19) Agile Aviation LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N395WJ

(20) Aero Leasing LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N560JG

(21) SIG Aviation LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N72SG

(22) Bank of America NA – Aircraft Identification Number N580AW

(23) Olympus Aviation Inc. – Aircraft Identification Number N884BB

(24) Olympus Aviation Inc. – Aircraft Identification Number N885BB

(25) GAT II Inc. - Aircraft Identification Number N 420GT

(26) Sela Plane LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N114V

(27) Wells Fargo Bank Northwest NA Trustee- Aircraft Identification Number N11LK

(28) Abbey Challenger LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N721G

(29) Hardwicke Properties LLC - Aircraft Identification Number N529DB


(30) Wilmington Trust Co. Trustee – Aircraft Identification Number N168NQ

(31) JCPE LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N926SS

(32) Alta Enterprises Inc. – Aircraft Identification Number N181J

(33) Norlease Inc. - Aircraft Identification Number N 252DH

(34) GC Air LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N604GM

(35) Great Point Advisors LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N604JS

(36) Concord Jet Service Inc. – Aircraft Identification Number N215KH

(37) JRB Air LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N905B


(38) Lark Aviation LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N855TJ

(39) Aircraft Guaranty Title and Trust LLC Trustee – Aircraft Identification Number N97GM

(40) Beta Aircraft Corporation – Aircraft Identification Number N14CG

(41) First Quality Falcon LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N50SN

(42) Fayair Inc. – Aircraft Identification Number N352AF

(43) Blue Horizon Management LLC- Aircraft Identification Number N721HM

(44) Shadowfax LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N987GK

(45) Bank of America NA – Aircraft Identification Number N900HD

(46) Adventair IIIA LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N900KX

(47) SN117 Inc. - Aircraft Identification Number N900SN


(48) AVN Air LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N977LP

(49) Mary Rose Aviation Inc. - Aircraft Identification Number N373ML

(50) Bay Jet LLC - Aircraft Identification Number N505GA

(51) Paragon Leasing LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N1PR

(52) Jordan Aviation LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N450CB

(53) Air Lake Lines II Inc. - Aircraft Identification Number N610AB

(54) Wilmington Trust Co. Trustee – Aircraft Identification Number N108DB

(55) SPI G-IV Owner LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N113CS

(56) AVN Air LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N151SD

(57) Jet Flight Corp. - Aircraft Identification Number N165JF

(58) Bank of America NA - Aircraft Identification Number N228RE

(59) Millard S. Drexler Inc. - Aircraft Identification Number N474D

(60) Wells Fargo Bank Northwest NA Trustee- Aircraft Identification Number N600AR

(61) Wells Fargo Bank Northwest NA Trustee- Aircraft Identification Number N624GJ

(62) 1260 LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N810LP

(63) Cape Clear LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N818ME

(64) SCP Aviation LLC - Aircraft Identification Number N880G

(65) Prudential Insurance Company of America - Aircraft Identification Number N82A

(66) MDL Consulting Associates LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N516GH


(67) Wells Fargo Bank Northwest NA Trustee- Aircraft Identification Number N740SS

(68) Wilmington Trust Co. Owner Trustee  - Aircraft Identification Number N88D

(69) Potomac Corp - Aircraft Identification Number N880Z


(70) PCM Capital II LLC – Aircraft Identification Number N167DP

(71) David Rockefeller – Aircraft Identification Number N500WK

(72) David Rockefeller – Aircraft Identification Number N200WK

(73) Duquesne Aviation Inc. - Aircraft Identification Number N99DQ
(74) Prudential Insurance Company of America - Aircraft Identification Number N1875P
(75) Wells Fargo Bank Northwest NA Trustee- Aircraft Identification Number N720AS

(76) Wells Fargo Bank Northwest NA Trustee- Aircraft Identification Number N267DW

(77) Wells Fargo Bank Northwest NA Trustee- Aircraft Identification Number N150GF

(78) Corporate Flight Inc.- Aircraft Identification Number N308HG 

12.      The aircraft described in paragraph 11, above, were listed on AMI’s Operations     specifications and were operated on passenger-carrying flights 

           for compensation or hire by TAG and/or the aircraft owner.

III – The October 4, 2007 Emergency Order of Suspension

13. On October 4, 2007, the FAA issued an emergency order suspending AMI’s air carrier certificate until such time as AMI demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Acting Administrator, with documentation, that it had sufficient management personnel  and the management structure, management systems and record systems, including  record systems that show the qualifications of its pilots and the airworthiness status of its aircraft, in place to maintain effective and safe operational control and ensure the safety of its Part 135 operations.  

On or about September 17, 2007, the FAA Flight Standards Division Manager, Southwest Region, faxed AMI a letter in which  stated as follows.  

As you are aware, the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) has been conducting an in-depth investigation of AMIJC Jet Charter’s (AMIJC) compliance with the Federal Aviation Regulations (FARs), in particular its compliance with operations control requirements.  Our investigation has centered on whether AMIJC has surrendered operation control by causing, permitting, or allowing uncertificated entities, including TAG Aviation USA, (a foreign entity ineligible to operate air carrier flights) and various “charter ally” companies, to exercise such control.  This investigation is ongoing and will continue.

However, recent inspections at the Westchester County and Minneapolis Airports and the Rye Brook, New York administrative offices, indicate significant safety issues may exist regarding AMIJC’s operations which cannot not wait the conclusion of our investigation.  Specifically, it appears that personnel and procedures followed to exercise operational control over its Part 135 operations are not in compliance with the FARs and AMIJC’s operations specifications.  In particular:

a. It appears that AMIJC did not adequately determine flight and duty time limitations and rest requirements before a crewmember was assigned a Part 135 flight. 

b. It appears that personnel not authorized by AMIJC’s operations specifications were designating the pilot in command and, when required, the second in command for Part 135 flights.

c. It appears that personnel not designated and authorized by AMIJC’s operations specifications actually exercised operational control over Part 135 operations.

14. In the September 17 letter, the FAA warned AMI that operations as described in the letter would be in violation of AMI’s operations specifications and the Federal Aviation Regulations.
 16.
Notwithstanding the FAA’s September 17 letter, the FAA subsequently discovered evidence establishing that AMI continued to operate:

a. When it did not adequately determine flight and duty time limitations and rest requirements before a crewmember was assigned a Part 135 flight;  

b. When personnel not designated and authorized by AMI’s operations specifications actually exercised operational control over Part 135 operations. 

17.     From October 1, 2007 to October 4, 2007, the FAA conducted follow-up                      inspections at AMI’s Headquarters in Burlingame, California, Rye Brook, NY               administrative offices, and various ramp inspections of aircraft on AMI’s operations     specifications. 

18.    Based on the inspections cited in paragraph 17, above, the FAA discovered evidence    establishing that AMI does not meet the recordkeeping requirements of FAR 135.63.
19.    On or about October 1 and 2, 2007, AMI was asked to demonstrate, while the                following aircraft were in flight, how the aircraft and the aircraft pilots met the              requirements of Part 135:
a. N167DP owned by PMC Capital II, LLC ; 

b. N987GK owned by ShadowPax, LLC;  

c. N55BA owned by Basic American Property Management, LLC;  

d. N420GT owned by GAT II, Inc.; 

e. N721HM owned by Blue Horizon Management, LLC; and  

f. N395WJ owned by Agile Aviation, LLC. 

20.     AMI was unable to demonstrate that the flights referenced in paragraph 19, above,        were in compliance: specifically, AMI failed to produce or timely produce records        related to pilot training, flight and duty, and rest records, and weight and balance           records. 

 21.   In addition, the FAA requested maintenance records on aircraft N167DP, N420GT,              and N721HM.

 22.   AMI failed to produce or timely produce information or records to demonstrate                    that the aircraft referenced in paragraph 21, above, were airworthy prior to flight.

23.     Specifically, AMI could not timely demonstrate the airworthiness of the aircraft and     either did, or would have had to, call the aircraft’s mechanic to provide the required      information. 

24.    In addition, on October 2, 2007, AMI was asked to produce the flight activity log for    the flights on aircraft N167DP, N55BA, N420GT, and N395WJ.

25.     The flight activity log is necessary to determine whether a specific pilot meets the         flight and duty time limitations and rest requirements.

26.     AMI failed timely to provide the records described in paragraphs 24 and 25, above,       in that AMI did not provide the records until October 4, 2007.

27.     In addition, the Crew Duty Log indicates that AMI failed to properly record duty           time. Specifically, it failed to record training and other non-flying duty time for             the following individuals: M. Shultz, J. Gevay, M. Lang, D. Friedman, A. Tsungu,           R. Despres, L. Van Den Brooke, and R. Swenson.
28.    On or about October 1, 2007, the FAA requested records for 24 crewmembers               associated with aircraft N167DP, N55BA, N420GT, N721HM, N395WJ, N113CS,      N88D, N505GA, N884BB, and N150SB, as well as records for the Chief Pilot.

29.    Of the twenty-five crewmembers’ records requested, for thirteen crewmembers, AMI    could not produce any personnel file records at all.

30.     Of the twenty-five crewmembers’ records requested, for fourteen crewmembers            AMI could not produce pre-employment drug testing records.

31.     Of the twenty-five crewmembers’ records requested, for nine crewmembers AMI          could not produce records related to National Driving Record checks, FAA                    certification checks from Oklahoma City and/or employment checks.

32.     Of the twenty-five crewmembers’ records requested, for six crewmembers AMI             could not produce records related to compliance with the Pilot Records                          Improvement Act (PRIA). 

33. AMI failed timely to provide records, and/or failed to provide reliable records, of training indicating that aircraft specific ground training had been completed for the following individuals: S. LaChapelle and A. Tsungu. 

34. AMI failed timely to provide records, and/or reliable records of training indicating        that flight training had been completed for the following individuals: S. LaChapelle      and A. Tsungu.

35. AMI failed timely to provide records, and/or reliable records of training indicating that Reduced Vertical Separation Minimums training had been completed for the following individuals: D. Friedman, M. Shultz and C. Baker.
36. AMI failed timely to provide records, and/or reliable records indicating that that instrument proficiency checks had been properly completed for the following individuals: M. Silverman, L. Van Den Broeke, K. Engel and D. Williams.

37. On October 2, 2007, FAA requested AMI to produce records pertaining to the operation of N560JG, being purportedly operated under the authority of AMI Jet Charter, Inc.’s Air Carrier Certificate, while the flight was still in progress. 

38. AMI Jet Charter, Inc. had no knowledge that the flight referenced in paragraph 37 was being operated. 

39. AMI has been making revisions to its Operational Control procedures without prior approval or acceptance by the FAA.

40. The Operational Control procedures produced at AMI’s Burlingame, CA facility were not the same procedures produced at the AMI facility in Rye Brook, NY.

41. With respect to the flight and duty time limitations and rest requirements records, AMI does not schedule rest periods but relies on the pilots to tell AMI whether they have accomplished the required rest or not.

42. In addition, the Flight Coordinators, the personnel that utilize the Flight Operations Systems (FOS), and who rely on the information contained in FOS to schedule flights and flight crews, were unable to explain the data entered into FOS.

43. On at least six separate occasions, the Director of Operations stated how FOS calculates rest requirements.  The manner of calculation that he described is contrary to the regulations. 

44. AMI lacks sufficient qualified management personnel to ensure the safety of its operation.

45. Specifically AMI’s Chief Pilot performs his duties and responsibilities only on a part-time basis.

46. AMI’s Airworthiness Evaluation Team (AET) does not have adequate aircraft maintenance records to enable it to determine the airworthiness of its aircraft.

Section IV  –TAG and/or the Aircraft Owners Operated Flights for Compensation or Hire Using AMI’s Certificate

47. Based on the allegations described in  Sections I, II and III, above 

(a) TAG and/or the aircraft owners exercised operational control over flights for compensation or hire that purportedly were conducted under the authority of AMI’s air carrier certificate; and/or

(b) TAG and/or AMI entered into arrangements and/or agreements with the aircraft owners listed in paragraph 11, above, under which TAG shared operational control with some or all of the aircraft owners.   

48. By virtue of the scheme and/or deceptive practice and/or  the way in which it ran its aviation operation, since in or about 1998  through the present, AMI  failed to  maintain operational control of its aircraft on  thousands of passenger- carrying flights for compensation or hire.

49. At times relevant herein, TAG and/or the aircraft owners exercised  operational control of all Part 135 flights conducted under the ostensible authority of AMI’s air carrier certificate in that TAG and/or the aircraft owners made all safety-critical decisions regarding the initiation, conduct, and termination of those flights.

50.
For example, at times relevant herein TAG and/or the aircraft owners performed the following functions for flights conducted for compensation or hire under the ostensible authority of AMI’s air carrier certificate: 

a.
Initiate and schedule charter flights.

b.
Select aircraft for charter flights.

c.
Release aircraft for flight.

d.
Monitor flight and duty time for regulatory compliance.

e.
Designate a Pilot in Command (PIC) for each charter flight.

f.
Monitor the progress of flights.

g. Coordinate with aircraft owners for charter flights.

h. Perform maintenance on the aircraft.

i.
Determine the airworthiness status of the aircraft.

j.
Initiate action to cancel, delay, re-route or divert a flight when the conditions specified in the release cannot be met.

k.
Process flight activity logs at trip termination.

l.
Flight coordination functions.

m.
Serve as pilots and cabin flight crews.

n.
Provide charter quotes.

o.
Book aircraft charters.

p.
Invoice customers.

q.
Collect charter revenue

51.    At  relevant times herein, TAG or its designee was required by its insurance  policies to approve all pilots used on flights for compensation or hire that were  

         operated under the ostensible authority of  AMI’s air carrier certificate.

       52.
At relevant times  herein, flight crews were assigned to flights for compensation 

     or hire that were operated using AMI’s certificate  when AMI management                  personnel, did not ensure that the flight crew members were in compliance with          flight and duty limitations and rest requirements. 

53.
From in or about 1998 to the present, AMI   caused, permitted or allowed aircraft on its operation specifications to be operated by TAG and/or the aircraft owners when they:

a.
Did not prepare and keep current a manual, acceptable to the Administrator, setting forth its procedures and policies acceptable to the Administrator.  
b.
Did not prepare and keep current a written training program curriculum – including ground and flight training required by Subpart H of Part 135- for each aircraft and for each crewmember required for the specific type aircraft.

c.
Did not ensure that each crewmember was adequately trained to recognize the required items classified as hazardous materials. 

d.
Did not establish and maintain an approved pilot training program, and an approved flight attendant training program, that was appropriate to the operations to which each pilot and each flight attendant was to be assigned, and did not ensure that they were adequately trained to meet the applicable knowledge and practical testing requirements of Part 135.

e.
Did not establish a required training program including ground and flight training curriculums for (1) initial training; (2) transition training; (3) upgrade training; (4) differences training; and (5) recurrent training.

f.
Did not ensure that each crewmember received recurrent training and was adequately trained and currently proficient for the type aircraft and crewmember position involved.      

g.
Did not have an inspection program and a program covering other maintenance, preventive maintenance, and alterations, that ensured that maintenance, preventive maintenance, and alterations performed by it, or by other persons, was performed under AMI’s manual.       

h.
Did not establish and maintain a system for the continuing analysis and surveillance of the performance and effectiveness of its inspection program and the program covering other maintenance, preventive maintenance, and alterations and for the correction of any deficiencies in those programs, regardless of whether those programs are carried out by AMI or by another person. 

i.
Did not keep required records at its principal business office or at other places approved by the Administrator, or make such records available for inspection by the Administrator.   

j.
Used pilots who, since the beginning of the 12th calendar month before that service, had not passed a written or oral test, given by the Administrator or an authorized check pilot, on their knowledge of the specified areas.

k.
Used pilots who, since the beginning of the 12th calendar month before that service, had not passed a competency check given by the Administrator or an authorized check pilot in that class of aircraft.   

l.
Used persons as crewmembers who had not completed the appropriate initial or recurrent training phase of the training program appropriate to the type of operation in which the crewmember was to serve since the beginning of the 12th calendar month before that service.  

54.    At relevant  times  herein, AMI did not maintain at least one exclusive use         aircraft that meets the regulatory requirements for at least one kind of           operation authorized in the certificate holder’s operations specifications. 

55.   By virtue of the foregoing the aircraft operated under AMI air carrier certificate were operated in a careless or reckless manner as to endanger the life and property of another.

56.   In some or all cases, the maintenance of aircraft on  AMI’s operations specifications             was being controlled by TAG and/or the aircraft owners, and not by AMI.

 57.   Based on the allegations hereinabove, AMI does not have the management structure            or systems necessary to maintain effective and safe operational control of its Part 135           operations. 

SECTION V  – Regulations Violated

By reason of the allegations set forth in Section I– IV, AMI Jet Charter, Inc. violated the following Federal Aviation Regulations:

1.
Section 119.21, which states that each person who conducts operations as a direct air carrier or as a commercial operator engaged in intrastate common carriage of persons or property for compensation or hire in air commerce, shall comply with the certification and operations specifications requirements in subpart C of this part, and shall conduct its operations as set forth in this section.
FAR1
2.
Section 119.5(g), which states that no person may operate as a direct air carrier or as a commercial operator without, or in violation of, an appropriate certificate and appropriate operations specifications.  No person may operate as a direct air carrier or as a commercial operator in violation of any deviation or exemption authority, if issued to that person or that person's representative.
FAR5

3.
Section 119.5(l), which states that no person may operate an aircraft under this part, part 121 of this chapter, or part 135 of this chapter in violation of an air carrier operating certificate, operating certificate, or appropriate operations specifications issued under this part.
FAR8

4.
Section 119.69(a), which states that each certificate holder must have sufficient qualified management and technical personnel to ensure the safety of its operations.

5.      Section 135.63(a)(4), which states that each certificate holder shall keep at its          principal business office or at other places approved by the Administrator,    

         and shall make available for inspection by the Administrator, an individual 

         record of each pilot used in operations under this part, including the 

         information contained in paragraph 4(i) through 4(x) of this subsection.


6.        Section 135.63(b), which states that each certificate holder must keep each 

          record required by paragraph (a)(3) of this section for at least 6 months, and 

          must keep each record required by paragraphs (a)(4) and (a)(5) of this section 

          for at least 12 months.

7.      Section 135.63(c), which states that for multiengine aircraft, each certificate            holder is responsible for the preparation and accuracy of a load manifest in  

         duplicate containing information concerning the loading of the aircraft.  The 

          manifest must be prepared before each takeoff and  include the information 

          required under this part.

8.
Section 135.25(b), which states that each certificate holder must have the exclusive use of at least one aircraft that meets the requirements for at least one kind of operation authorized in the certificate holder's operations specifications. In addition, for each kind of operation for which the certificate holder does not have the exclusive use of an aircraft, the certificate holder must have available for use under a written agreement (including arrangements for performing required maintenance) at least one aircraft that meets the requirements for that kind of operation. However, this paragraph does not prohibit the operator from using or authorizing the use of the aircraft for other than operations under this part and does not require the certificate holder to have exclusive use of all aircraft that the certificate holder uses.
9.
Section 135.251(a), which states that each certificate holder or operator shall test each of its employees who performs a function listed in appendix I to part 121 of this chapter in accordance with that appendix.
10.
Section 135.255(a), which states that each certificate holder and operator must establish an alcohol misuse prevention program in accordance with the provisions of appendix J to part 121 of this chapter.
11.
Section 135.255(b), which states that no certificate holder or operator shall use any person who meets the definition of "covered employee" in appendix J to part 121 to perform a safety-sensitive function listed in that appendix unless such person is subject to testing for alcohol misuse in accordance with the provisions of appendix J.
FAR13
12.
Section 135.3(a)(1), which states that each person operating an aircraft in operations under this part shall while operating inside the United States, comply with the applicable rules of this chapter.
FAR14
13.   Section 135.413(a), which states that each certificate holder is primarily responsible for the airworthiness of its aircraft, including airframes, aircraft engines, propellers, rotors, appliances, and parts, and shall have its aircraft maintained under this chapter, and shall have defects repaired between required maintenance under Part 43 of this chapter.
FAR15
14.
Section 135.413(b)(1), which states that each certificate holder who maintains its aircraft under §135.411(a)(2) shall perform the maintenance, preventive maintenance, and alteration of its aircraft, including airframe, aircraft engines, propellers, rotors, appliances, emergency equipment and parts, under its manual and this chapter.
FAR16
15.
Section 135.425(a), which states that each certificate holder shall have an inspection program and a program covering other maintenance, preventive maintenance, and alterations, that ensures that maintenance, preventive maintenance, and alterations performed by it, or by other persons, are performed under the certificate holder's manual.
FAR17
16.
Section 135.425(b), which states that each certificate holder shall have an inspection program and a program covering other maintenance, preventive maintenance, and alterations, that ensures that competent personnel and adequate facilities and equipment are provided for the proper performance of maintenance, preventive maintenance, and alterations.
FAR18
17.
Section 135.425(c), which states that each certificate holder shall have an inspection program and a program covering other maintenance, preventive maintenance, and alterations, that ensures that each aircraft released to service is airworthy and has been properly maintained for operation under this part.
FAR19
18.
Section 135.429(a), which states that no person may use any person to perform required inspections unless the person performing the inspection is appropriately certificated, properly trained, qualified and authorized to do so.
FAR20
19.
Section 135.431(a), which states that each certificate holder shall establish and maintain a system for the continuing analysis and surveillance of the performance and effectiveness of its inspection program and the program covering other maintenance, preventive maintenance, and alterations and for the correction of any deficiencies in those programs, regardless of whether those programs are carried out by the certificate holder or by another person.
FAR21
20.
Section 135.439(a)(1), which states that each certificate holder shall keep (using the system specified in the manual required in § 135.42) and for the periods specified in paragraph (b) of this section, all the records necessary to show that all requirements for the issuance of an airworthiness release under §135.443 have been met.
FAR22
21.
Section 135.77, which states that each certificate holder is responsible for operational control and shall list in the manual required by §135.21 the name and title of each person authorized by it to exercise operational control.
FAR23
22.
Section 91.13(a), which states that no person may operate an aircraft in a careless or reckless manner so as to endanger the life or property of another.
FAR24
As a result of the foregoing, the Acting Administrator finds that AMI Jet Charter, Inc. lacks the qualifications necessary to hold an Air Carrier Certificate.  He therefore has determined that safety in air commerce or air transportation and the public interest require the revocation of the above-mentioned certificate.  The Acting Administrator further finds that an emergency requiring immediate action exists with respect to safety in air commerce or air transportation.  Accordingly, this Order is effective immediately.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, pursuant to the authority vested in the Administrator pursuant to 49 U.S.C. §§44709 and 46105(c), that:

1. Effective immediately, AMI Jet Charter, Inc.’s Air Carrier Certificate is revoked; and 

2. AMI Jet Charter, Inc. immediately surrender its Air Carrier Certificate by mail or personal delivery to the Regional Counsel, Federal Aviation Administration, 1 Aviation Plaza, Jamaica, NY 11434. 
DETERMINATION OF EMERGENCY

Under 49 U.S.C. §46105(c) the Acting Administrator has determined that an emergency exists related to safety in air commerce.  This determination is based on AMI Jet Charter, Inc.’s lack of qualification to hold an Air Carrier Certificate because of the nature and seriousness of the violations set forth in this order.  AMI Jet Charter, Inc. entered into a scheme and/or deceptive practice with TAG Aviation USA, Inc., whereby AMI allowed TAG and/or aircraft owners to exercise operational control over its Part 135 operations.  AMI Jet Charter, Inc. intentionally and deliberately allowed TAG to exercise such control when it knew that TAG Aviation USA did not hold a U.S. air carrier certificate.  Additionally, AMI Jet Charter, Inc. intentionally and deliberately allowed the aircraft owners to exercise such control when it knew the aircraft owners did not hold air carrier certificates.  Moreover, AMI Jet Charter, Inc. does not have sufficient management personnel and the management structure, management systems and record systems, including record systems that show the qualification of its pilots and the airworthiness status of its aircraft, in place to maintain effective and safe operational control and ensure the safety of its Part 135 operations.
The Acting Administrator’s determination reflects his judgment that AMI Jet Charter, Inc. does not have operational control of the flights purportedly operated under the authority of its certificate, a situation that poses an unacceptable risk to safety in air commerce.  Under these circumstances, the immediate protection of the public is paramount.  Accordingly, the Acting Administrator has determined that in order to provide immediate protection to the public, safety in air commerce and the public interest require the immediately effective revocation of Air Carrier Certificate Number IJ0A4091.

In conclusion, the Acting Administrator has determined that under the criteria of FAA Order 2150.3B, Chapter 6, pages 7-10 and Chapter 7, pages 1-3, your conduct as alleged in this order demonstrates that you presently lack the degree of care, judgment, and responsibility required of an air carrier certificate holder.  The Administrator, therefore, finds in accordance with 49 U.S.C. §46105(c) and the guidance found in FAA Order 2150.3B, Chapter 6, pages 7-10 and Chapter 7, pages 1-3, that the exercise of the privileges of AMI Jet Charter, Inc.’s certificate while any proceedings related to the issuance of this Order are pending is contrary to the interest of safety in air commerce.

AMI Jet Charter, Inc. may appeal from this Order in accordance with the appeal procedures set forth below.

Loretta E. Alkalay
Regional Counsel
By:
____________________

Brendan A. Kelly
Attorney
1 Aviation Plaza
Jamaica, NY 11434 
Telephone:
 (718) 553-3269
Facsimile:
 (718) 995-5699
APPEAL 

AMI Jet Charter, Inc. may appeal from this Emergency Order within ten (10) days from the date of its service which is October 12, 2007 by filing a Notice of Appeal with the Office of Administrative Law Judges; National Transportation Safety Board; Room 4704; 490 L’Enfant Plaza East, S.W.; Washington, D.C.  20594. (Telephone) (202) 314-6150). The National Transportation Safety Board’s (NTSB’s) Rules of Practice in Air Safety Proceedings, 49 C.F.R. part 821, subpart I apply to appeals of Emergency and Other Immediately Effective Orders.  An executed original and three (3) copies of its Notice of Appeal must be filed with the NTSB.  If AMI Jet Charter, Inc. appeals, a copy of its Notice of Appeal must be served on the FAA’s attorney at the address listed in this Emergency Order.  If AMI Jet Charter, Inc. files an appeal to the NTSB, a copy of this Emergency Order will be filed with the NTSB as the Administrator’s Complaint in that proceeding.

AMI Jet Charter, Inc. may also seek review of the FAA's determination that an emergency exists in this case, which makes this order immediately effective.  AMI Jet Charter, Inc. may request such a review in a written petition filed within two days after its receipt of this order. Petitions for review of FAA emergency determinations must be served, with a copy of the FAA’s emergency order attached to the petition, by facsimile or by an expedited means that ensures next-day delivery:  1) on the Office of Administrative Law Judges; National Transportation Board; Room 4704; 490 L’Enfant Plaza East, S.W.; Washington, D.C.  20594 (facsimile (202) 314-6158; and 2) simultaneously and by the same means, on the FAA’s attorney at the address provided in this order (facsimile (718) 995-5699).  The NTSB rules of practice that apply to its review of the FAA’s emergency determination are available at 49 C.F.R. 821.54 or through the NTSB’s website at http://www.ntsb.gov/alj/legal.htm.

Whether or not AMI Jet Charter, Inc. elects to appeal from this Emergency Order, it must immediately surrender its Air Carrier Certificate to the Regional Counsel at the address listed in this Emergency Order.  In the event that AMI Jet Charter, Inc. has lost or destroyed its certificate, AMI Jet Charter, Inc. will be required to execute a sworn declaration setting forth the circumstances that makes AMI Jet Charter, Inc. unable to surrender its certificate.
Enclosure:

FAA Order 2150.3B, Chapter 6, pages 7-10 and Chapter 7, pages 1-3
cc: Mark McDermott, Esq.  (FAX 202-331-1422)

     Thomas Mason, Esq. (FAX 202-822-8106)
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